
EAST TYIIE WATER & SEWERCO}IiIISSION
REGUIAR MEETXNG

TUESDAY, MARCH 2q 2023
I,IINUTES

The East Lyme Water & Sewer Commission held a Regular Meeting on Tuesday, March 28,2023.
Chairman Seery called the Regular Meeting to order at 7 PM.

PRESENT: Kevin Seery, Choirmon. Dow Bond, Stew Di6iovunno, Dow
tliurphy. Carol Rnssell, Roger Spencen, Dave Zoller,
Roberfs

AI-5O PRESENT: Joe Brogow, Public Works Diresfor
Atforney Edwod O'Connell, Town Counsel
Ben Norfh, lAunicipol Wility Engineer
Atfy. Theodore Horris, Representing the Applicont
Robart Pfanner Sr., Rapreserfiry ltc Applicort

ABSENT No One

1. Gall to Order I Pledge of Allegiance
Chairman Seery called the Regular Meeting of the East Lyme Water & Sewer Commission to order at
7:00 PM and led the assembly in the Pledge.
Mr. Seery noted that Mr. North wanted to add an item to the agenda and suggested that it be added as
Item 5A.

*MOT|ON (1)
Mr. DiGiovanna moved to add ltem 5A to the agenda - DiscussionlAction - CT DOT l-95
Interchange lmprovements at Rte 161 Construction Phase Services.
Mr. Murphy seconded the motion.
Vote: 8- 0 - 0. Motion passed.

Mr. Seery introduced Ken Roberts to the Commissioners as he had recently been appointed to replace
Mr. Mingo on the Commission.

2. Approval of Minutes. Regular Meeting Minutes - February 28,2023
Mr. Seery called for a motion or any discussion on the Regular Meeting Minutes of February 28,2023.

*MOT|ON (2)
Mr. DiGiovanna moved to approve the Regular Meeting Minutes of February 28,2023 as
presented.
Mr. Murphy seconded the motion.
Vote: 6- 0 -2. Motion passed.
Abstained: Mr. Zoller, Mr. Roberts

. Public Hearing Minutes - March 2,2423
Mr. Seery called for a motion or any discussion on the Public Hearing Minutes of March 2,2023

*MOTTON (3)
Mr. DiGiovanna moved to approve the Public Hearing Minutes of March 2,2023 as presented.
Mr. Murphy seconded the motion.

nn!(:)
r'lfn
a*sr(3

3e
fi3
3g'on(t

t=t

fr-t
:G'

t
-a

tr
-s

o



Vote: 6- 0 -2. Motion passed.
Abstained: Mr. Zoller, Mr. Roberts

3. Delegntions
Mr. Seery called for delegations.
There were none.

4, Discussion and Possible Action on Nehantic Village Gapacity Request
Mr. North recalled that the applicant had requested 110,0009pd of capacity and that he had noted that they
have limited capacity available and wanted to hear discussion on what the Commission had to say.

Aftomey O'Connell sald that they had some housekeeping wlth respect to some Commlssloners who were
not at the last meeting and asked that they establish their familiarity with the record and tape of that meeting
for the record.

Mr. Zoller said for the record that he had read the minutes and reviewed the tape of the previous
meeting and felt comfortable in being able to vote this evening.

Mr. Roberts said that he had read the minutes but had not seen the tape and was prepared to abstain
from the vote this evening on that issue.

Attomey O'Connellthen passed out two different potential motions on the item forthe Commissioners to
review. He noted that one was to deny and one was to approve and that while the core of them was the
same, the final decision was not. He said that they had learned from a past case that it is a must to be
thorough in the delivery of the motion which is why they are so lengthy.

Mr. Seery opened the floor for discussion

Mr. North explained what would be necessary for those already sewer assessed areas (76,000 gpd for the
opt-ins and 60,000 gpd for the vacant properties' in the area) a total of 136,000 gpd.

Ms. Russell noted that there was a more recent two-year average that would actually show a negative
number and those most recent two-years is more in line with where the trend is going. She said that they
should be more seriously looking at that trend.

Mr. North said that they wanted it to reflect the fire-year cycle - where we really do not have enough for a
project of this size.
Attorney O'Connell elaborated that the 882gpd they like to keep for those who come so that there is 'some'
remaining capacity.

Mr. Bond said that they have never exceeded their capacity and that the sewer goes by his house but he has
not tied into it yet - perhaps in five years - however the benefit assessment has never been paid. He asked
why that capacity is not available to others.

Attomey O'Connell said that they use them as examples of the ticket holders'who have aright to hook up
and while it is not a hard and fast number it has to be kept in mind that it has to be available to that
per/property when they need to or look to connect. You cannot put a precise number on it.

Mr. Bond countered that they then are not making any money from this.

Attorney O'Connell said that it is a matter of sound business practices and you have to have it available to
them should they want it. He added that it is also a Commission decision.

Mr. Zoller said that Mr. Bond is driving at a gap between capacity and actual usage. He said that he thinks
that we have to be concerned with ac'tual usage and also with seeking more capacity.

2East LymeWater & Sewer Commission Regular Meeting Minutes- March 28, 2023



Mr. DiGiovanna said that he agrees with both Mr. Bond and Mr. Zoller. He recalled that when the Orchards
was approved that running the line up Rte 1 was a benefit to the Town. Likewise, he thinks that running the
sewer main up Pennsylvania Avenue would also be a benefit to the Town

Ms. Russell said that she is concemed with what we are seeing in terms of adual usage overthe last two
years and feels that we are in serious tenitory and that we should be looklng lnto acquis1ion of additional
capacity. But - at this time we do not know if/when any is available orwhat it would iost and we also do not
have the funds for it. She said that herthoughts are that this request should be put in a delay or hold'status
until we have the information that we need. We need to be more thoughtful about this and not approve
something that we do not know enough about or where the revenue would come from for it.

Mr. Seery said that Ms. Russell does bring up a lot of good points but we cannot ask a developerwith a
request to wait while we gather information. He noted that we would be getting a sewer line instaled from
approximately Oswegatchie Hills down to Main Street. However he saidihat ne is a bit uncomfortable with
the full capacity request.

Mr. Spencer asked about the number that they would have in mind.
Mr. North said thet they fett that half - 55,000 gpd would be in lile and that it would enable them to do the
project. He added that he would also love to see them rcview some re-use brown water system which the
DPH would have to review.

Mr. Murphy said that he thinks that a brown water system would be good. lt would have to be very well-
engineered. He noted that the difference between the five-year and iwo-year look back is the S5,000 gpd

Ms. Russell said that she is deeply concemed because they do not know what capacity is available forsale.
At lhe very least they should find out whaUif there is capaciiy available forthem to purihase and at what cost
that would be, especially in light of all of the building going on in Waterford and New London.

Mr. Seery said that he does not thing that it is within the next six months to a yearthat we would have an
issue and we also have not discussed anything with the State.

Mr. Bond said that with a safety factor - what is the worst that could be used - 75,000 - 80,000 gpd.

**MOT|ON (4)
Mr. Bond moved that WHEREAS, on January 79,2029, Pelletier-Niantic, LLC (,,Applicanf') filed with
the East Lyme Water and Sewer Gommission ("Gommission") an application foi oetermination of
sewer capacity pursuant to General Statutes 7-246a(a)(1) and the East Lyme Regulation entifled
"Applications for Determination of Sewer Capacity Purcuant to General 

-statuteJ 
EZ-24ga(a)(i)"("Regulation"), seeking an allocation of 110,000 giltons per day (,,gpd") of sewerlapacitir iiia

proposed multi'building designed for assisted living and associateC m6Oicat facilitiis to 
-be 

located
on property at 200 Pennsylvania Avenue (,,Application,'); and

WHEREAS, the Regulation sets forth the information that must be included in an application for
determination of sewer capacity, as well as the duration of a capacity allocation and the factorc that
the Commission may consider in reaching a decision on such an application; and

WHEREAS, the Application contains the information required by the Regulation, including a
contingency, which is an integral part of the proposed prcject, that the Applicant will design,
construct and install a sewer service main conforming to the Gommission;s design criterii liading
from Main Strcet in and along Pennsylvania Avenue to the site of the prcposed fioject; and

WHEREAS pursuant to the Regulation and General Statutes g7-246a(a)(i), the Gommission is
required to decide on an application within 65 days of receipt as tnadtl'nii is defined in General
statutes S8-7d, and that the decision is due on or before March 30, 2023; and

WHEREAS, the Gommission held a public hearing on the Application on March Z,2O2g. Numerous
exhibits were submitted by the Applicant and the Commisslon's staff, and the Commission heard

3East Lyme water & sewer commission Regular Meeting Minutes - March 2q 2o2g



testimony from the Applicant, staff and the public. ln making its decision the Commission is
considering all of the testimony and exhibits submitted at the pubtic hearing; and

WHEREAS, the Gommlssion has*idediscretion in connection with the decision to supply sewer,. .:, : :.€Gfilirto pafticular properties; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agrcement with ihe Towri of Watefofd add $re City of t\ldw Londod
("Agrcementi'), the Town is entitled to make use of 15% of the treatment capacity of the Piacenti
Facility (the New London Waste Water Treatment Facility); and

WI{EREAS, the curr,e.nttrcatment mpacity of the Piacenti Facility is 10,{X10,{XX! gnllons per dey; fitd

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement, the Town is currently entitled to 1,500,000 gallons per day of
Sewage trtafiient capacity at the Piecefii Faciffiy; afid

WHEREAS, puruant to contracts with various State of Gonnecticut agencies, the Town is required to
tesewe 478,000 gallons per day of its available sewage trcatment capacity fsr lhe benefit of various
state facilities located in the Town, and this amount is not available to the Town orany other
customers of the Town; and

I,I|HEREAS, Etst Lyrne's sewertneatnent capacity is limited and finite; and

WHEREAS, based sewer flow data in the Record, and accounting for prior allocations, and approved
projects under construction, East Lyme has approximately {37,000 gpd of available sewer treatment
capacity (Exhibit {1}; and

tltHEREAS, the Regulation sets forth a non+xclusive lisl of criteria that ihe Gomrnission may
consider in deciding on capacity applications, including other arcas in town designated for sewer
service and the effect of the allocation on remaining capacity; and

WHEREAS, the evidence shows that the amount of capacity requested in the Application exceeds the
Town's available capacity; and

BE lT THEREFORE RESOLVED, that the East Lyme Waterand Sewer Gommission, acting as the
Town's Water Pollution Control Authority, purcuant to the Regulation and based on a review of
evidence in the record, hercby GRANTS to the Application of Pelletier-Niantic, LLC 75,000 gallons per
day of sewage fi"atment capacity purcuant to its Application dated January 79,2023 seeking 110,000
gallons per day of sewer capacity for a proposed multi-building development designed for assisted
living and associated medical facilities to be located on propefi at 200 Pennsylvania Avenue. The
duration of said grant shall be as set forth in section ll of the Regulation.
Mr. DiGiovanna seconded the motion

Mr. Spencer said that he prefers the lower amount and feels that 55,000 gpd is good.

Mr. Murphy said that he thinks that there are a lot of things that we should have been investigating
howeverwe need to give them an answer and try to workwith the developer be it the 55,000 or 75,000
gpd.

Ms. Russell said that she agrces that we have work to do but feels that we are setting a dangerous
precedent when we do not know what is available or how much the cost would be. Also with respect to
the treatment plan in New London - if it expands we would have to absorb Point O Woods and Pine
Grove into our allotment whic-tr is around 150,000 gpd.

Mr. Bond said he thinks that we should max out our capacity as we are a business.
Mr. Spencer-
Mr. Zoller called the motion -
Mr. DiGiovanna seconded the call-

4East LymeWater & Sewer Commission Regular Meeting Minutes- March 2g 2023



Vote: 6 - 1 - 1. Motion passed.
Against: Ms. Russell
Abstained: Mr. Roberts

5. Set Public Hearing Date for SewerAssessments
Attorney O'Connell said that some are residential and some commercial and that the185 Main is still
another type that is included here.

r*MoTtoN (5)
Mr. DiGiovanna moved to set the SewerAssessments Public Hearing forApril 25,2023
commencing at 6:30 PM.
Mr. Spencer seconded the motion.
Vote: 8- 0 - 0. Motion passed.

5. A. DiscussionlAction - CT DOT l-95 lnterchange lmprovements at Rte 161 Gonstruction Phase
Services
Mr. North said that he needs to put a PO together on the project work that will be done for us. This is
already approved by the State - we just have to secure an account. lt is paid for by the State.

*MOTTON (6)
Mr. Murphy moved to appropriate and transfer $12,600 in SewerAssessment Fund 3 from
nesources available to the account titles, "DOT Gonstruction Phase Engineering Services" to
fund on-going engineering services and inspection work.
Mr. DiGiovanna seconded the motion.
Vote: I- 0 -0. Motion passed.

6. Billing AdjustmentslDisputes
There were none.

7. Approval of Bills
There were none.

8. Finance Dircctor Report
Mr. Gervais was in attendance at another meeting. There was no report.

9. Discussion on Water & Sewer Budgets Fl 23-21
Mr. Bragaw noted the following on the sewer side -
' Revenue worksheet - proposing bringing $176,360 from sewer assessment to help offset capital

costs in the operating budgets.. The back of the revenue sheet shows the calculations of estimated revenue as well as a potential
rate increase on the sewer side of 5% across the board on all rates.. Suggested changing the regulations to allow for a minimum usage charge as there area number of
customers who do not use any sewer so they do not pay any usage fees although they are hooked
up to the system and have the ability to use it. (some 300+ customers)

Mr. Bond asked if they could use this bee between both water and sewer
Mr. Bragaw said no as there are far more water customers than there are sewer.. On the expenditure side they are proposing a 10o/o budget increase.. There is a new line item for capital projects of $1000,000 to cover all kinds of smaller capital

projects that come up during the year that are not maintenance.

' He is proposing to change the names of two line items - Professional Development to Training; and
New Services/Projects to Meter Usage Payment. They are not proposing any new trucks in this budget.

Ms. Russell said that given the capacity discussion that the inflow line has $1000 in it - she asked if that
was a placeholder as it seems that they could be doing more with that.
Mr. North said that he is working on a project similar to that which potentially has grants.

East Lyme Water & Sawer Commission Regular Meeting Minutes - March 29 2023 5



Mr. Bragaw noted the following on the water side -r They are showing a need to pullfrom their retained earnings $229,799.
' Water flows and therefore revenue (prisons) seem to be dropping which is putting more strain on

bringing in revenue from the Town side.

' On the back of the revenue sheet are calculations for estimated revenue along with a potential rate
increase for the water side of 8% across the board on all rates.

' They are proposing a $200,000 line item for capital projects as right now they have no mechanism
to pay for capital costs in the water operating budget.

' They need to discuss the bonds/principal line at an upcoming meeting.. They are proposing one new truck in this budget

Ms. Russell said that she was not sure of exactly how to put this - but it seems that they are also
putting in part of Mr. Seery's First Selectman's salary into this budget. (Water- $8,300)

Mr. Seery said yes as he is spending some 3 to 4 hours perweek on this so his salary is being reduced
by that from the Selectman's Office.

Ms. Russell said that this is the first time that it has ever been done and it is only on the water side and
not the sewer side and she does not think that it is fair to the water customers.

Mr. Seery said that it is by Ordinance that he wears this hat also and that he would welcome an
ordinance change as it does become difficult to do both no matter how you divide the hats. He added
that he thinks that it is only fair that it gets billed to where the time is being spent.

10. Proiect Updates. Meter Replacement Proiect
Mr. North said that they average 225 per month and hopes that by the next read in the fall that they will
be around 90% done.

' Boston Post Road Tank Rehabilitation Project.
Mr. North said that the contractor is starting the sandblasting.

11. Gorrespondence Log
There were no comments.

12. Ghairman's Report
Mr. Seery said that the Rte 161 project has begun and that 4.5 years from now we will be happy that it
was done.

Mr. Murphy asked about the Rocky Neck pump house.
Mr. Seery said that he has not heard any more on it but would love to have them put some money
towards it.

Mr. Seery said that tomonow at Rosa Negra they would be holding a women's recognition event as it is
women's recognition month.

13. Staff Updates
a. Water Department Monthly Report

Mr. Murphy asked when the Boston Post Road hydrant would be fixed.
Mr. North said that they are still waiting on the parts.

Ms. Russell asked the cost for a hydrant.
Mr. North said about $5 - 6,000.

Mr. DiGiovanna asked about the replacement of meters for the schools

6East Lyme Watar & Sewer Commission Regular Meeting Minutes - March 2q 2023



Mr. Bragaw and Mr. North said that they have determined the types and that the schools will have to
pay for them over a period of years. They will know soon and should be able to put them in over the
summer months.

b. Sewer Department Monthly Report
There were no comments.

14. Future Agenda ltems
a. HomeownerWater Line Leak lnsurance
b. lrrigation Sub-metering Policy

Under discussion.

Add - look into potentialfor additional capacity acquisition

15. ADJOURNMENT
Mr. Seery called for a motion to adjourn

**MOTION (7)
Mr. Murphy moved to adjoum this Regular Meeting of the East Lyme Water & Sewer
Gommission at 8:40 PM.
Mr. DiGiovanna seconded the motion.
Vote: 8-0- 0. Motion passed.

Respectf u lly submitted,

Koren Zmitruk,
Recording Secretory

7East Lyme Water & Sewer Commission Regular Meeting Minutes - March 28, 2023


